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Chartered Accountants
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Independent Auditor’s Report

To

The Members of
Abacus Real Estate Private Limited

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Abacus Real Estate Private Limited (‘the
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended on that date, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information (‘the Financial Statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, {‘Ind AS'} and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the State of
Affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Changes in
Equity and its Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SAs’) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(‘ICAP) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements
under the provisions of the Act, and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial
Statements,

Emphasis of Matter

4,

We draw attention to Note 49 of the financial statements, which describes the basis for preparing the
financial statements on a going concern basis, despite the reported losses and erosion of capital. This
treatment is based on the application of revenue recognition principles under the applicable Ind AS and
the financial support committed by Kalpataru Limited (the 'Ultimate Holding Company'). Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter,
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Other Information

5. The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s Report including Annexures to Director’s Report and
such other disclosures but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditors’ report thereon.
The Other Information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

6. Ouropinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

7. Inconnection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibilityis to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears 1o be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that thereis a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

8. When we read the Director's Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action as
applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

9. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act, with
respectto the preparation of these Financial Statermnents that give a true and fair view of the State of Affairs,
Loss and Other Comprehensive income, Cha nges in Equity and Cash Flows of the Company in accerdance
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irreguiarities; selection of the appropriate accounting software for
ensuring compliance with applicable laws and regulations including those related to retention of audit
logs; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due tc fraud or error.

10. In preparing the Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors eithar intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

11. The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

12. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance ahout whether the Financial Statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
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includes ouropinion. Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Financial Statements, '

13. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

13.1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

13.2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internat financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

13.3, Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management,

13.4. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or; if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

13.5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
eventsin a manner that achieves fair presentation.

14. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit,

15. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

16. As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order'), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure A’ a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
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17. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

18.

17.1.

17.2.

17.3.

17.4,

17.5.

17.6.

17.7.

17.8.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit,

In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph 18.8
below on reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended)

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act read with the relevant rules thereunder. -

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2} of the Act.

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 17.2 above on reporting under Section 143(3)(h) and paragraph 18.8
below on reporting under Rule 11{g} of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended).

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Reportin ‘Annexure B’

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no remuneration is
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014 {as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us;

18.1.

18.2,

18.3.

18.4.

18.5.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2025 on its financial
position in its Financial Statements ~ Refer Note 36 to the Financial Statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses - Refer Note 36(d) to the Financial Statements;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

The Management has represented , to best of their knowledge and belief, that no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to orin any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(‘Intermediaries’}), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend orinvestin other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Management has represented, to best of their knowledge and belief, that no funds have been
received hy the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {‘Funding
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18.6.

18.7.

18.8,

Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on such audit procedures, that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representation
under para 18.4 and 18.5 contain any material misstatement.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
declared or paid dividend during the year, accordingly compliance with section 123 of the Act by the
Company is not applicable.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same was operational throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in
the software, except for the following observations:

a} The audit trail logs at the database level, which would capture direct data changes or
modifications to administrative rights, were not available for our verification, although restrictions
on database administrator access have been implemented using Priviledged Access Management
{PAM} solution and with the retention of log of recordings of any accessibility.

Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance where the audit trail
feature was enabled, had been tampered with.

Additionally, the Company has preserved the audit trail in accordance with statutory record
retention requirements, to the extent where feature has been enabled, excluding audit trail logs at
the database-level.

For KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621

C%\’\Q/LSD ,. .

Bharat Jain

'Partner

ICAl Membership No: 100583
UDIN: 25100583BMKXLN7379

Place: Mumbai
Date: 11 July 2025
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements of Abacus Real Estate
Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 16 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
of even datae)

i. (a)

(b}

(c)

i. (a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (‘PPE").

The Company does not have intangible assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its PPE by which all PPE are
verified once in three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme,
no PPE were physically verified by the Management during the year. '

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable properties {other
than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
revalued its PPE (including Right of Use assets) during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 {45 of 1988} and rules made thereynder.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the physical
verification of inventories has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management and, the
coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate, No material
discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of rupees five crore, in aggregate, from banks or financial
institutions which are secured on the basis of security of current assets. As informed to us, the
Company is not required to file quarterly returns or statements with such banks or financial
institutions.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
granted unsecured loans to companies and the details are mentioned in the following table:
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{Rs. in lakhs)
Advancesin the
nature of loans

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans

Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year
Others - - 2,908 | -

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases
Others - - 1,983 | -

(b) tn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and
conditions of the grant of all loans are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the Company’s interest. The
Company has not made investments, provided guarantee or given security during the year.

(¢} Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, thereis no stipulated
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interests on loans granted by the company and
the same are repayable on demand.

(d) 1nour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, since all the loans are
repayable on demand, no amount is overdue in respect of loans.

{e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, neither loans or
advances in nature of [oans have been renewed or extended nor any fresh loans have been granted
to settle the overdue of existing loans.

(f) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to Promoters. Out of the aforesaid loans as
mentioned in clause iii (@), Rs. 2,908 lakhs {i.e. 100% of Total Loans) are given to Related Parties (as
defined in section 2(76) of the Act) which are either repayable on demand and without specifying
any terms or period of repayment.

v, In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 {1} of the Act with respect to the loans given.
The Company has not made investments, provided guarantee or given security during the year.

V. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public during the year
in terms of directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India or the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi. The Company is not required to maintain cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 and hence reporting under
paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vil. (@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, amounts
deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues have generally
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been regularly deposited by the Company to/with the appropriate authorities though there have
been slight delay in a few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, incom e-tax, Goods and Services Tax, duty of
customs, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

In our apinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, we confirm that the following dues of income-tax have
not been deposited to/with the appropriate authority as on 31 March 2025, on account of disputes
as under;

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Name of | Nature of | Amount| Period to| Forum where | Remarks, if
the the Dues which the | dispute is | any
Statute amount relates | pending
Income Tax | Income Tax 1,544 | AY2012-2013 High Court
Act, 1961
income Tax | Income Tax 6891 AY2013-2014 National Faceless{ Refer Note 1
Act, 1961 Assessment below.
Center
Goods and | Goods and 244 Transition Appeals V, | Net of
Services Tax | Service Tax Period Baseerbagh, amount paid
Act, 2017 Hydrabadh under
protest.
Goods and | Goods and 65| FY2019-2020 Appeals V,|{ Net of
Services Tax | Service Tax Baseerbagh, amount paid
Act, 2017 Hydrabadh under
protest,

Note 1: The specified amount is net of Refund of Rs. 263 lakhs (AY. 18-19), Rs. 129 lakhs {A.Y. 23-24)
and amount paid under protest.

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, we confirm that we have not come across any
transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings to
financial institutions, banks or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. The company has
not borrowed from government and debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures,
we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority or any other lender.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
utilized the outstanding term loans during the year for the purposes for which they were obtained.
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Xi.

¥ii.

xiii.

Xiv.

Xv.

Xvi.

(d) Accordingto theinformation and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and

(e)

on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. The Company does not
have any joint ventures ¢r associates.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries. The Company does not have any joint ventures or associates.

(a) The Company did not raise money by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including debt

(b)

(a}

instruments) during the year.

The Company has not made any preferentiaf allotment / private placement of shares / fully / partly
/ optionally convertible debentures during the year.

In our epinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there has been no
fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company that has been noticed or reported during the
year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-
section {12} of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year..

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of
the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of Section 177 are
not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business,

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the period under
audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without
obtaining a valid CoR from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
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Xvii.

xvifi.

Xix.

XX.

(c)

(d}

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (‘CIC’) as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India.

There is no CIC as part of the Group to which the Company belongs.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year. The amount of cash loss is Rs. 1,174 lakhs & Rs. 2,790 lakhs respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly this clause
paragraph 3(xviii} of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
having regard to the business cycle of the company, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit repoit and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of section 135 of the Act pertaining to Corporate Social Responsibility are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, paragraphs 3{xx)(a) & {b) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

For KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621

B)harat Jain

Partner

UDIN: 25100583BMKXLN7379

Ca D

Place: Mumbai
Date: 11 July 2025
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Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditors’ report on the Financial Statements of Abacus Real Estate
Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Referred toin paragraph 17.7 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Financial Statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’).

Opinion

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements of Abacus Real
Estate Private Limited (‘the Company’} as at 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

2. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to the Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2025, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {‘the
Guidance Note').

Management’s responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

3. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal controls over financiai reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s responsibility

4. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
the Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing (‘SA ), prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements, Those SAs
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference
to the Financial Statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

5. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to the Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements, assessing the risk
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T:+912261437333 E:info@kkellp.in W: www.kkcllp.in LLPIN; AAP-2267

Suite 52, Bombay Mutual Building, Sir Phirozshah Mehta Road, Fort, Mumbai 400001, India



kkec & associates llp

Chartered Accountants
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due
to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
ouraudit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements.

Meaning of internal Financial Controls with reference to thé Financial Statements

7.

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company’s internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements include those policies
and procedures that {1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Financial
Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements

8.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

For KKC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
{formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Firm Registration Number: 1051

Bharat Jain
Partner

ICAl Membership No: 100583
UDIN: 25100583BMKXLN7379
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Place: Mumbai
Date: 11 July 2025
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" Abacus Real Estate Private Lirmnited
CIN: U70102MH2007PTC 173337

Balance Sheetas at 31 March 2025 {¥ in lakhs)
Particulars Nates 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a} Property, plant.and equipment 4A 56 57
{b) Right fo use asset 4B 11 21
{c) Financial assets
{i) Invesiments 54 18 18
(i} Other financial assets 58 249 10
(d) Non-current tax-assets 8 784 838
(e} Deferred tax assets A 1,059 708
{f) Other non-current assets 7B - 23
Total non-current assets’ 2,177 1,675
2, Current assets
(a) Invenicries 8 15,866 15,123
{b) Financial assets
() Loans 9 1,983 13,089
(it} Trade receivables 10 6,458 7,501
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 11 239 476
(iv) Bank balance other than {iii} above 12 1,099 704
{v} Other financial assets 13 136 220
(c) Other current assets 14 553 443
Total current agsets 26,334 37,556
Total assets 28,511 39,231
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 15{a) 79 79
Cther equity 15(b) (862) {1
Total equity {783) 78
Liability
1. Non-current liabifities
(8) Provisions 16 78 73
{b) Financial liabilities
) Borrowings 17A - 16,034
(i} Lease liabilities 178 2 18
Tofal non-current Kabilities 80 16,123
3. Current liabilities
{a} Financial fiabilities
{i) Borrowings 18A 25275 19,736
(i) Lease liabilities 18B i3 11
{iity Trade payables
(A} Tofal outstanding dues of migro enterprises and small 124 20
enterprisas 19
(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 2,049 1,929
enterprises and small enterprises
{iiiy Other financial liabilties 20 105 182
(b} Other current liabilities 21 1.642 1,146
{c} Provisions 22 B 5]
Total current liabilities 29,214 23,030
Total equity and liabilities 28,51 38,231
Notes forming part of the financial statements 1-51
As per our report of even date
For KKC & Associates LLP Forand on behaff of the Board
Chartered Actountants M
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP) ‘f?f{ﬁ “"ﬁ:
105146Wf W100621 [ ¢
< f’”f’ '
Bharat Jam Jayant C. Oswai Narendra Lodha
Partner Director Director
iCA| Membershlp No.: 100583 (DIN:02102884) (DIN:00318630)
Plage: Mumbai Mumbai Miimbai
Date: [} i :r!,JH 2 Lf Date: 11th July 2025




Abacus Real Estate Private Limited
CIN: U70102MH2007PTC 173337

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025 (T in Takhs)
Particulars Notes 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
. {Income
Revenue from operations 23 8,298 6,898
Other income 24 143 48
inferest income 25 1,113 1,970
Total Income (1) 9,554 8,916
Il. {Expenses
Cost of operations 26 8,979 8,946
Employee benefits expense 27 427 468
Finance costs 28 1,126 2,130
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 38 32
Cther expenses 30 196 186
Total Expense (II) 10,766 11,760
lil. |Profit/(l_oss) before tax for the year (I- 1) (1,212) (2,844)
IV, |Tax expense
Current tax - cument year - -
- earlier year 0) (22)
Deferred tax charge/(credit) 32 (351) 811)
V. |Profiti{Loss) for the year after tax (Il - V) (861) {2,211)
Vl. [Other Comprehensive Income
Re-measurement gain/{losses) on defined benefit plan 0 0
Income tax impact on above {0} (0)
Other comprehensive income for the year {net of tax) 0 0
Vil. |Total comprehensive income far the year {V + VI) (861} (2,211)
Earning per equity share of Z10/- each fully paid up
Basic and diluted eamings per share ( ¥ ) 31 {108) (280)
Notes forming part of the financial statements 1-51

As per our report of even date

For KKC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

{formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLF)
FRN: 105146W/ W100621

he

Bharat Jain

For and on behalf of the Board

at

Jayant C. Oswal Narendra Lodha

Partner . . Director Director
ICAl Membership No.: 100583 \K‘ﬁwﬁ (DIN:02102884) {DIN:00318630)
Place: Mumbai Mumbai Mumibai

Date: 11th July 2025
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Abacus Real Estate Private Limited
CIN: U70102MH2Z007PTC 173337

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2025 (T in lakhs)
Paiticulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A [Cash flow from operating activities
Profit { {loss) before tax (1,212} (2,844)
Adjustments for;
Loss/{profit) on sale of Assets (o) (0
Depreciation 31 32
Depreciation on Right of use Assets 10 -
Unwinding of discount on financia! liabilitie's at amorised cost 88 117
IND AS 116 impact (14) {9)
fnterest income {1.113) (1,970}
Interést expenses 1,126 4,530
Operating profit befare working capital changes {1,104) {145}
Adjustments for:
{Increase)f decrease in inveniories 1,888 1.662
{Ingrease) decrease in trade and other receivables 1,071 (B47)
Increase / (decrease} in trade and other payables 648 712
Net cash used in operating activities before tax 2,513 1,582
Direct taxes refund/{paid) 54 {219)
Net cash used in operating activities (A} 2,567 1,363
B |Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including capital work-in-progress) {32) n
Sale of property, plant and equipment 2 3
Becresef(Increase) in other bank balances {657} {70)
Shori-term loans given to
- Related parties {2.908) {4,227)
Short-term loans given repaid by
- Related parties 14,241 9,128
Interest received 278 1,936
Net cash used in investing activities (B) 11,524 6,769
C|Cash flow from firancing activities
Repayment of non-current borrowings fram financial institution (10,313) {360}
Repayment of current borrowings from financial institution - (1,875)
Proceeds from non-current borrowings from finandial institution 8,400 -
Proceeds from current borrowings
- Holding company 1,375 3,025
Repayment of current barrowings
- Holding company {10,799) (3,608)
Interest paid {3,087 {4,508)
Loan processing {100) -
Net cash from financing activities {C) {14,534) {7.326)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) {443) 805
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 208 {600}
Cash and cash equivalents {including bank overdraft) at the end of the year [Refer
note 3 below] {238) 205
Add: Earmarked balances with banks 1.347 714
Cash and bank balances at the end of the year 1,108 919
Notes:

1 The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 ‘Statement of cash flows’,

2 Previous year's figures (not material} have been regrouped! reclassified wherever aecessary to confirm to current years' classification.

3 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of: 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cash on hand 2 2
Balances with banks in current accounts 237 474
Cash and cash equivalents [Refer note 11] 239 476
Less: Bark overdraft (477) (271)
Cash and cash equivalents/{bank balance averdrawn) for the purpose of above (238) 205
statement of cash flows

As per our repart of even date
For KKC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants.
{formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

THR5146W/ W100621 ' - k
Bharat Jain Jayant C. Oswal Narendra Lodha
Partner Director Director
ICAI Membership No.: 100583 {DIN:02102884) (DIN:00318530)
Place: Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai
Date: (tHhTudap 28 %" . Date; 11th July 2025
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Abacus Real Estate Private Limited
CIN: UT0102MH2007PTC1 73337

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2025

Equity share capital

Current reporting year

F In lakhs

Balance at the

beginning of the Changes in equity share

capital due to prior period

Balarice at the beginning

Change in equity share
capital during the current

Balance at the end of the

current reporting errors of the reporting year yaar current reporting year
year
78 - 79 - 79
Previous reperting year ¥ In lakhs

Balance at the
beginning of the
current reporting

Changes in equity share
capital due to prior period

Balance at the beginning
of the reporting year

Change in equity share
capital during the currant

Balance at the end of the
current reporting year

As per our report of even date

For KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)
RN: 105146W/ W100621

Bharat Jain
Partner -
ICAl Membership No.: 1 0583
Plage; Mumbat -

i%’.}?{

| 5 2,//
Date: ) Ha Tudy \z‘h\wm«ﬁf

Jayant C. Oswa
Director
(DIN:02102884)
Mumbai

Date: 11th-July 2025

errors year
year
79 - 79 - 79

Other equity

Finlakhs
For the year ended 31 March 2025 Reserve and surplus

Retained earning Total

Balance as at 01 April 2024 1) {1)
Change in accounting policy or prior period errors - -
Balance as at 01 April 2024 (1) (1)
Profit for the year (861) (861}
Other comprehensive income - -
Re-measurement gains/{losses) on defined -
Totai comprehensive income for the year (861) (861)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 (862) (862)

FIn lakhs
For the year ended 31 March 2024 Reserve and surplus

Retained earning Total

Balance as at 01 April 2023 2,216 2,210
Change in accounting policy or prior period errors - "
Balance as at 01 April 2023 2,210 2,210
Profit for the year (2,211} (2,211)
Other comprehensive income 0 0
Total comprehensive income for the year {2,211) {2,211)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 (1) {1}

For and on behalf of the Board

L

Narendra Lodha
Directar
(DIN:GC318630)
Mumbai




Abacus Real Estate Private Limited
Nates forming part of the financial statements

Note -1

Company information

Abacus Real Estate Private Limited {the Company)} is a -company {CiN: Urg1 G2MH2007PTC173337) domiciled in India and is govemed
under the Companies Act, 2013. The Company's registered office is at 101, Kalpataru Synergy, Opp. Grand Hyatt, Santacruz {East),
Mumbai 400 055. The Company is prAmarily involved in Real Estate Development, Leasing and Renting Business.

Note - 2
(!} Basis of preparation

Saction 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Companies {Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS) Rules, 2015) and other
relevant provisions ofthe Act and rirles frared thereunder.

The financiat Statéments have been prepared io comply in all malerial respecis with the Indian Accounting Standards notified under

The financial statements have baen prepared under the histerical cost cofvention and on accruai basis, except for certain financiaf
assets and liabilities measured at fair value as expiained in accounting policies below.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid to fransfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
pariicipants at the measurement date, regardiess of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique, tn estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
fiability if market participants would take those characieristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

The financiat statements are presented in 7 in lakhs thereof, except when otherwise indicated.

{Ih Material accounting policy (MAP)
(a) Current and non-current classification

{b

{c

{d

)

—

—

Property, plant and equipment

i) All property, plant and aquipmeant are stated at original cost of acquisitionfinstallation (net of input credits availed) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss, if any, except freehald tand which is carried at cost. Cost includes cost of acquisition,
construction and installation, taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses that are directly attributable to bringing the asset
ta its working condilion for the intended use and estimated cosl for decommissioning of an asset. '

i} Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the expenditure will
flow to the Company.

ili) Property, plant and equipment is derecognised from financial siatements, either on disposal or when no future ecenoric benefis
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising en derecognition of the property {(calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and fhe carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and foss in the
period in which the property. plant ang equipment is derecognised.

iv} Capital wark-in-progress comprises cost of property, plant and equipment and related expenses that are not yet ready for their
intended use at the reporting date.

v) Depreciation on propery, plant and equipment is provided on written down value method based on the useful life specified in
Scheduie |l of the Cempanies Act, 2013.
vij Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the period of lease on straight line basis.

vii) Sales office cost at site is amortized on straight tine basis over the period of useful life as estimated by the management based on
life of the project.

Intangible assets
i} Intangible assets are caried at cost, net off accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if any.

ii)  Intangible assets (Sofiwares) are amortized on straight line basis over a period of three years.

investment properties

i) Investment properties are properties held fo earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation {including propefly under consiruction for

such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subseguent to initial récognition,
investment properties are measured in accordance with the requirements of cost modet as perind AS 18,

ii)




Abacus Real Estate Private Lirited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

iy Depreciation on investment properly is provided an written down value methad based on the usefu| jife specified in Schedule I of
the Companies Act, 2013,

(e) Inventories
inventories are valued at lower of cost.and net realisable vaiue. The cost of raw materials {construction materials) is determined on the
basis of weighted average method. Cost of work-in-progress and finished stock includes cost of iand / development righis, construcion
costs. allocated borrowing costs and expenses incidentai to the projects undertaken by the Company.

{f} Fair value measurement
The Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurament of fair values for financial instruments.
The Gompany has an established contrat framework with respect o the measurement of fair values. The management regularly
reviews significant unabservable inputs and valuation adjustments,

All financial assets and financial liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financiat slatements are categarised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as foliows, based on the iowest fevel input that is significant ta the fair value measurement as
a whole;

+ Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in dctive markets for identical assets or liabilities,

* Level 2 — Valuation fechniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable, or

* Level 3 - Valuation fechniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 1o the Fair value measurement is unobservable;

The Company recognises iransfers between lavels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting pesiod during which the
change has occurred.

{g} Financial instruments
1 Financial assets
i} Classification
The Campany classifies iis financial assets either at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), Fair Value through Other
Camprehensive Income (FVTOCI) or at amoriised Cost, based on the Company's business madel for managing the financiat
assels and theirconfractual cash flows.

i} Initial recognition and measurement
The Company at inifial recognition measures a financial asset at its fair vaiue plus fransaction costs that are directly
atiribuiable to its acquisition. However, transaction costs relating to financial assets designated at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL) are expensed in the statement of profit and foss for the year.

iii} Subsequent measurement
Far the purpose of subsequent measurement, the financial asset are classified in four categories:
a) Debtinstrument al amortised cost
b) Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive Income
c) Debtinstrument at fair value through profit or loss
d) Equity investments

Debt instruments

* Amortised cost:

Assets that aré held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on such instruments is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised orimpaired. Interest income from these financial assets is caiculated using the effective interest rate method and
is included under the head "Finance income",

* Fair value through other comprehensive income {FVTOCI):

Assets that are heid for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair vaiue through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through QCI, except for the recognitien. of impairment gains or fosses, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recogrised in the statement of profit and loss. When the financizl
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in QC| is reciassified from equity to statement of profit
and loss. Interest income from these financial assets is calculated using the effective interest rate method and is included
under the head “Finance income",

* Fair value through profit or Ioss:

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amorised cost or fair value through cther comprehensive incormie {FVTOCI) are
measured atfair vatue through profit or loss. Gain and losses on fair vaiue of such.instruments are recognised in statement of
profit and loss. Interest income from these financiat assels is included in other income.

B 0




Abacus Real Estate Private Liimited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Equity investments ather than investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
The Company subsequently measures all equity investmenis other than investments in subsidiasies; joint ventures and
associates at fair vafue. Where the Company's managenent has efected to present: fair value gains and losses on equity

iv
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The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers, identified either individually or by the Company, and incorporales
this information into its credit risk controls. The Company's policy is to deal aenly with creditwerthy counterpariies,
In respect of trade and other receivables, the Campany is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any singie

v} De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised oniy when:
* The rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired
* The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset or
= The Company has neither transferred nor retaingd substantiaily all the risks and rewards of the financial asset, but has
transferred contral of the financiat asset.

Il Financial liabilities
i) Classification
The Company dlassifies all financial liabilities at amortised cost or fair value threugh profit or loss.

ii) Initial recognition and measurement
Financiai liabiliies are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, deposits or as payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recegnised initially at fair value and, in tha case
of loans and borowings and payables, net of directly attributabie transaction costs.

iii) Subsequent measuremant
The measurement of financial liahilifies depends on their classification, as deseribed below:

a  Financial Ifabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through ‘profit ar loss include financial lfabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon inifiat recognition as at €air vaiue through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised
in the profit or loss,

b Loans, barrowings and deposits
After initial recognition, loans, barrowings and deposits are subsequenily measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liabifities are
derecognised as welf as through the EIR amoriization process. The EIR amoriisation is inciuded in finance costs in the
statement of profit and ioss.

¢ Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided fo the Company prior to the end of financiat year which are
unpaid. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate
fair value due to the short-term maturity of these instruments,

d Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a‘loss it incurs because the specified debtcr fails 1o make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of &
deblinstrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a fiability at fair value, adjusted for transaction cosls
that are directly. attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the
amount of loss #lowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and {he amouni recognised less

cumulative amortisation. @/,—




Abacus Real Estate Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

iv} De-recognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled ar expires. When an
existing financial fiability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liabiiity. The difference in the respective camying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

{i) Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and on kand and short-terim depaosit with original maturity
upto three months, which are subject o insignificant risk of changes in valie,

(it) Forthe purpase of prasentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivatenis consists of cash and short-term deposit,
as defined above, net of outstanding hank. overdrafi as they are cansidered as an integral part of Cormpany's cash management

(i) Revenue recognition
i} Revenue from real estate activity
a) I case of under construction units, revenue from real estale activily is recognised in accordance with Ind AS 115 'Revenue
frem Contracts with Customers' on safjsfaction of performance obligation on the basis of Company's binding contracts with
cusiomers, upen transfer of control of promised products or services to customers for a consideration the Company expects to
receive in exchange for those products or services. The Company satisfies the performance obligation at a “point in time" OR
“overime” depending on the fulfilment of the criteria as prescribed in para 35 of the said standard.

As such there teing no objective criteria prescribed by the said Standard for recognition of revenue “over time", the Company
recognises the revenue based on fuifilment of part obligation on fallowing criteria:

. For revenue recognition, only those units are considered whera agreemaent / contract with buyers s executed,

i. In case, where stage of completion of the projéct reaches a reasonable leve! of development i.e. 25% or more as supporfed by
physical work repon, revenue is recognised on units mentioned in point no {i} above based on actual cost incurred o the
propartion of totat estimated cost e, "project cost method”. (Input Method). In case where units have received occupancy
cerificate; full revenue is recognized.

iii.

In case, where stage of completion has not reached a reasonable level of development mentioned in point no (i) above, e
revenue is recognised only to the extent of actual cost incurred subject 1o fulfillment of point no (i) above.

b) In case af contracts with custorers where performance obligations are satisfied “point in time”, the Company recagnises the
revenue when the customer obtains conirol of the premised assets which is linked to occupancy certificate on those units
where binding agreement! contracts with the buyers are executed.

Revenue is recognised net of indirect taxes and comprises the aggregate amounts of sale price as per the documents entered
into. The total saleable area and estimate of costs are reviewed pericdically by the management and any effect of changes
therein is recognized in the period in which such changes are determined. However, if and when the total project costis
estimated to exceed the total revenue from the project, the loss is recognized inthe same financiat year,

ii) Interestincome

Interest. income for all debt instruments, measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, is
recognised using the effective interest rate method.

{i) Incomie taxes

The income tax expenses comprises current and deferred tax. it is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent
that it refates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehinsive income.

Current tax:
The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or subsiantively enacted at the end of the reporting peried.

Deferred tax:

Defetred {ax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and fiabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amount used for taxafion purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary difierences to the extent that is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised, such reductions are reversed
when the probability of futire 1axabie profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are measured at each reporing date and recognised to the extent that it has become prabable that
future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
Deferred tax is measured at the {ax rates that are expected to be applied lo the temparary differences when they reverse, using tax
raes enacted or substantively enacted at the-reporiing date. ' A,
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Abacus

Real Estate Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the lax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expedis at
the reporting date 1o recover or settle the carrying amount of its assels and liabilities.

(k) Impairment of nan-financial assets

._,
-—

(m)

{n})

(o)

The carrying amounts of non financial assets are reviewad at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on

future cash flows are discounted to the present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the ime
value of money and risks specific to the assels. An impairment loss Is charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year in which an
assel is identified as impaired. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the assei over its remairing
useful life. The impairment loss regognized in prior accounting periods is reversed by crediting the statement of profit and foss if there
has been a change ir Ihe estimate of recoverable amount.

Employee benefits
(i} Short-term benefits
Short-term employae bensfits are recogrized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the statement of profit and loss for the
year in which the rélated services are rendered.

(ii} Defined contribution plans
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when the
contribution to the respestive funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the fund.

(lii) Defined benefit plans
Befined benefits plans is recognized as an expense in the stafement of profit and loss for the year in which the employee has

rendered services. The expense is recognized at the present value of the amount payable determined using actuarial valuation
techniques.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liabitity, which comprises of actuarial gains and losses, are recognised in ofter
comprehensive income in the period in which they oceur,

{iv) Other long-term employee benefits
Ciher long-term benefils are recognised as an expense in the stalement of profit and loss at the present value of the amounts
payable determined using actuarial valuation techniques in the year in which the employee renders services. Re-measurements
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the petiod in which they arise.
Earntings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable {o equity shareholders {aflar
detlucting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted. averaga number of equity shares outstanding during the peried.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the nat profit or loss for the period attributable te equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares
except when the resuits would be anti-dilutive.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition of construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of cost of such assets. All
other borrawing costs aré expensed in the period in which they ocour, Barrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity

incurs in connection with the barrowing of funds and is measured with reference fo the effective interest rate applicabie to the
respective borrowings.

Leases

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is or contains, a lease. A contract is, or cantains a lease if the
cantract conveys the right to centrol the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange of consideration. To assess whether
a caoniract conveys the right te control the use of an asset; the Company assesses whether -

- the confract contains an identified assat; which is either expiicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being ideritified at
the time the asset is made avaitable to the Company.

- The. Company has the right o obtain substantially alt of the econemic benefits from use of the ideniified asset throughout the period of
use, considering its rights within the defined scope cf the contracts and

- the Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use. The Company assesses whether it
has the right 1o direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the pericd of use.

Company.as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of cwnership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. Rental income from operating lease [s recognised an a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as-revenue in the:period in which they are earned. -
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Abacus Real Estate Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Company as afessee

Right of use Asset-

The Cempany recogrises a right-of-use assel and a lease iiabifity at the lease commencement date. At the commencement date, a
lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset at cost which comprises initial measurement of the l=ase liatility, any lease payments made

Lease Liabitity-
At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present value of the lease paymemts that are not paid at
that date. The lease payments shall be discounted using the interest rate implici¢ in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If
that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate.

Short-term lease and leases of low-value assets-

The Company has elected not to recognise fight-of-use assets and lease abilities for shart- term leases that have a lease term of less
than 12 months or less and ieases of low-value assels, including T Equipment. The Company recognises the lease payments
associated wilfr these feases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the jease term. The election for shori-term leases shall be
made by class of underlying asset to- which the right of use relates. A class of underlying asset is a grouping of underlying assets of a
similar pature and use in Company's operations. The election for leases for which the underlying asset is of fow value can be madeon
& lease-by-lease basis.

(p} Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
i} Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or censtructive obligation as a result of past events, 1 is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses. Provisions are measured atthe present value of managemenit's best estimaie of the
expenditure required {o seftle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are discounted using pre-tax rate thai reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due fo the passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

i} A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existenge will be confirmed by the occurrence or
nan-occurrence of one. ar more uncertain fulure events beyond the control of the company. The Company does not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

iii) Contingent assets are not racognized, but disciosed in the financial staterients where an infiew of economic benefit is probable,

(q) Foreign currency transactions
i} Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting curcency (Indian rupee) by applying to the foreign currency amount, the
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency on the date of the transaction.

ii)  All monetary items denominated in foreign currency are converted inte Indian fupees at the year-end exchange rate. The exchange
differences arising on such conversion and on setflement of the fransactions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Non-menetary ftems in terms of historical cost dencminated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate prevailing
on the date of the transaction.

Note - 3A

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management {o make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reporfed amounts of revenues, expenses. assets and liabitities, and the accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilites. Estimaies and judgements are confinuously evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expeciations of future events that are believed 1o be reasonable. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and esfimales could result in outcomes that require-a material adjustment to the carrying amount of asssts or liabilities
affetted in futuré periods. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the pericd in which the estimate is révised.

a) Classification of property
The Company determines whether a praperty is classified as investment property or inventory:
Investment praperty comprises land and buildings {principally commercial premises and refail property} that ‘afe not ocoupied
substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the Company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held primarily
to 2amn rental income and capital appreciation. These buildings are substantially rented to ténants and naot intended to be sold in
the ordinary course of business.

Inventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary cousse of business, Principally, the Company deveiops and
intends to sell befare or on completion of canstruction.
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Abacus Real Estate Private Limited
Nates forming part of the financial statements

b) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

c

d

e

—

)

—

Evaluation of percentage cornpletion

Determination of revenues under the percentage of complétion method necessarily involves making estimates, some of which are
of a téchnical nature, concerning, where relevant, the percentages of completion, costs to campletion, the expected revenues fiom
the project or- aclivity and the foreseeable losses io completion. Estimales of project income, as well as projects costs, are
reviewed periodically, The effect of changes, if any, {o estimates is recognised in the financial statements for the period in which
such are-determined.

Taxes

Deferred tax assels are recognised for unused tax iosses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit wili be available against
which the losses can be ulilised. Significant management judgement is required 1o determine the amount of deferred tax assels
that can be recagnised, based upon the likely timing and the leve! of futyre taxable profits.

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligatfon arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuaridl assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions
include discount rate, trends in salary escalation and attrition rate. The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at
the end of the reparting period on government securifies.

Note - 3B
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") rotifies new standards or amendments fo the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the period ended 31st March 2025 MCA has not notified any new
standard or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Campany.
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Abacus Real Estate Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financlal statements

Note - 4A
Property, plant and equipment
Zn lakhs
) Sales office and Office Plantand Furniture and
Particulars show flat Equipments Machinery Computers fixtures Total
Deetned cost
As on 01 April 2023 483 24 15 7 3 532
Additions during the year - 0 - 1 - 1
Deletions during the year - {3) {4) - - {7}
As at 31 Mareh 2024 483. 21 11 3 3 526
Additions during the year - 2 8 22 1 32
Deletions during the year - B (5} - . (5}
As at 31 March 2025 483 24 14 29 4 553
#1in lakhs
N Sales office and Office Plant and Furniture and
Particulars show flat Equipments Machinery Computers fixtures Totat
Accumulated depreciation
As op 01 April 2023 L] 21 7 8 2 451
Additions during the year 18 1 2 1 0 22
Deletions during the year - (3) ] - - (4)
As at 31 March 2024 433 19 7 & 3 469
Additions during the year 19 1 1 9 0 31
Delelions during the year - {3} - - (3)
As at 31 March 2025 452 20 8 15 3 497
¥ In lakhs
[Net carrying amount as at 31 March 7624 48 | 2] 4] 1] 1 a7 1
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2025 30 | 3] 8 14} 1 56'[

Note: Qut of total Depreciation Rs. 2 Lakh is transferred {o work-in-progress

Note - 4B

Right of Use Asset

{Ieised assets) X In Jakhs
Particulars Office premises
Gross carrying value {at deemed cost)

As.on 01 April 2023 43
Addition ori account of IND AS 118 -
Deduction durng the year -
As at 31 March 2024 48
Addition on account of IND AS 116 “
Deduction during the year -
As at 31 March 2025 48
Accumlated Depreciation

As on 01 April 2023 17
Depreciation 10
Deduction during the year -
As at 31 Mareh 2024 27
Depreciation 10
Deduction during the year -
As at 31 March 2025 37
Net carrying value

As at 31 March 2024 21
As at 31 March 2025 11

Note - All title deeds of immovabie properties are hsf
the Company.

&

d in the name of the Company. The Campany hol

U

ds appraprigte titles for assels under lease, the rights are is the favolr of




Abacus Reai Estate Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note - 5A
Nan-current investments

{in lakhs)

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

A) Investment in Equity Shares in [unquoted)
Whoily owned subsidiaries - at cost
Kalpataru Constructions {Poona) Private Limited
90,000 {31 March 2024, 90,000} equity shares of # 10/- each fully paid up)

Ardour Properties Private Limited
90.000 (31 March 2024, 90,000) equity shares of Z 10/ each fully paid up)

Total

18

18

Note - 5B
Cther Non-current Financiat assets

(¥ in lakhs)

Particutars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Deposit

Secarily Depesit with Lender

Deposits with banks having original maturity peried of mare than twelve months®
Interast acerue but not due on FD with bank

247
2
¢

10

Total

249

it

*includes Rs.2 Lakhs (31 March 2024~ Rs. 10 lakhs) Deposited with/Lien in favour of Stalutory Authorities against Bank Guarantees.

Note - &
Mon-current tax assets

(T inlakhs)

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Balances with Government authorities

« Disact tax 784 838
Total 784 838
Note . 74

Deferred tax assets (T inlakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 |
Employse benefils 25 20
Fiscal aflowance on property, plant and equiprment le] 66
Unabsoroed fiscal alowances G54 641
Impact of ransitional provisions on adoptien of Ind AS -115 * Revenue from custommers” {10} {18
Total 1,059 708
Nete - 7B

Other non-current assets {¥injakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2624
Prepaid expenses . 23
Total - 23
Note - 8

Inventories {¥ in lakhs}
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Raw Material 263 48
Work-in-progress {Refer niote 37} 15,603 15,075
Total 15,866 15,123
Note - 9

Current financial assets - L.oans (T in lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

{Unsecured, considered good unless olherwise stated)
Loans to Related Party

1,983

13,089

Total

1,983

13,089

Details of loans and advances which are repayable on demand -~

Particulars

31 March 2025

3% March 2024

Type of borrowers

Amount of loan

% of Total [oan

Amount of [oan

% of Total lpan

outstanding outstanding
Related Parlies 1,983 100% 13,089 100%
Note - 10
Trade receivables (¥ in lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

{unsecured-and corisidered good)
Cthers (Refer note 37)

1501

Total




Abacus Real Estate Private_.- Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Trade Receivables ageing
Mar-25
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars < § Months 6 Mdnths-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years Total
Undisputad Trade Receivables —Consldered Good 06 289 18 - 35 1,228
Undispited Trade Receivables — Considered Doubtiul - - -~ - . -
Mar-24

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars < B Menths 6 Months-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yedrs > 3 yoars Total
Undisputed Trade Receivables ~Considered Good 687 149 43 6 35 920

Undisputed Trade Receivables — Gonsidered D oubifu! -

Note -

1. Trade receivables include # 5229 Lakhs (Previous Year ¥ 6,582 Lakhs) representing the contract assels, which are expected to ke bilfed upon satisfaction of relevant obligations

aligned fo biffing milestones
2, There are np unbilled dues on the reporting dates,

Note - 11

Cash and cash equivalents (¥ in lakhs)
Particulars 31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
Balances with banks in current accounts 237 474
Cash on hand 5 2
Totai. 239 476
Note - 12

Bank balance other than {11) above {T in lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Deposits with banks having ortginal maturity period of Less than lwelve months® 046 503
Other Bank balanges 183 2m
Total 1,099 704

" Includes Rs.946 Lakhs (31 March 2024- Rs. 503 lakhs) Deposited wilhttien in favour of financials institutions/bank for loans taken and statutory authorities agai

nst Bank Guarantees,

Note - 13
Cureent financial assets - Others {T in lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Deposit with vendors 26 28
Advances to Vendor/ Other Advances 78 166
Othérs - 26
Interest accrue but nol dua on FD wilh Banks az .
Total 136 220

Betails of loans and advances which are repayahle on demand -

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Type of borrowers

Amount of loan

% of Total loan

Amount of loan

% of Total loan

outstanding outstanding-

Related Parties - 0.00% 26 1.75%
Note - 14
Other current assets {T in [akhs)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balantes with government avtharities
- indirect tax 445 25§
Prepaid expenses 18 23
Contract cosi assets ag b
Other Receaivables 51 44
Total 553 443
Note -15
Equity share capital and other equity
{a} Equity share capital
{i} Authoriséd share capital®

{¥in lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
8.00.00C (31 March 2024 - 8,00,00G ) equity shares of Rs 10 each 80 8G
Total L e

7
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Abacus Real Estate Private Limited
Notes ferming part of the financial statements

Issued, subscribed and-paid up aquity shares

{¥in Jakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 Marech 2024
7.90,000 {31_ March 2024 - 7,980,000t equity shares of Rs 10 each 79 8

Total 79 79

“ Authotised share capital of Rs 70 fakhs {March 31, 2024 - Rs 70 lakhs) towards optionally. convertible preference shares of Rs.10 each is not considerad above,
Movernent in equity share capital

{TIn lakbs)
Particulars No, of shares Amount,
As at 31 March 2023 7.90,000 79
Changes during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 7,890,000 79
Changes during'the year - .
As at 31 March 2025 7,890,000 79
(i) All the above equity shares are helg by the holding company Kalpataru Limited and its rominees,
i) Details of Shares heid by promoters:
Name of the Promoter 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

. Number % of total Number % of total

Particulars of Shares of Shares
Kalpataru Limited 7.90,000 100% 7.90,000 100%

iit) Terms/ rights attached to Equity Shares
The Gompany has only ane class of eguity shares having a par value of Rs 10/
pays dividend in Indian rupees, The final dividend when proposed by the Board o

per share. Each holder of

In the event of liquidaticn of the Company, the holders of equily shares will be entitled
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equily shares neid by the shareholders.

iv) There are no bonus shares issued or shares issued for consideration other than cash or shares bought back during

1o receive remaining assets of the company,

equily shares is entitled to one vole per share. The Company deciares and

f Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

after distribution of ali preferential ameunts. The

tast five years preceding 31st March 2025,

{b} Qther equity {% in lakhs}
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
Retained earnings i 2,209
Addf{Less)

Profit!(loss) for the year (861} {2,211)
Item of other comprehensive income recognised

directly in retained eamings ¢ )}
Totat {862) 1)
Nature and purpose of reserves

1) Retained earnings

Relained eamings reprasént the accumated earnings nel of losses made by the Company over the years.

il} Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income comprises of re-measurement gains/{losses) of defined benefit obligations.

Note - 16

Non-current lfabliities - Provisions {¥ in lakhs)
Particularg 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Employee benefits 78 73
Total 78 73
Note - 17A

Nan-current financial liabifities - Borrowings {Tinlakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Loan from financial institutions - -
Unsecured

Loan from financial institutions - 16,863
Eess: Current maturities disclosed under "Current financial fiabilities™ - {829)
Total - 16,034

. Loan from a financial insfilution of Rs Nil (31 March 2024-
a relaled parly,

Rs 16,863 fakhs} is secured by way of pledge of shares owned by a reiated party, other Party and corporate guarantee. of

i

"
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Abacus Real Estate Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note - 178
Lease liabillties

{¥in lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Oeferred Lease Yability 5 16
Total 2 16
Note - 18A
Current financial liabilities - Borrowings {Zin lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Secured
Lean fram
~ Bank

- Bank {Refer note (i} below] - 9,212

- Lean from financial institutions 8,348 .

- Qverdraft facility from bank [Refer note i} and {iiij below) 477 273
Unsecured

- Loan fram financial institctions | Refer nate {4} below] 15,607 -

- Holding Company 843 9.424
Curent maturities of long-term borrowings - 829
Total 25,275 19,736

(i) Loan from a Bank of Rs Nif (31 March 2024 - Rs 9,212 fakhs
at Hyderabad. The loan carries interest not exceeding @71.95%

{ji) Lean from financial Institutions Rs.15,607 Lakhs is secured
fixed deposits fien in favour of financial institulion.

} and overdrait facility of Rs Nil (31 March 2024 .
above fender's banchmark rale and is repayable in

Rs 121 jakhs) is secured by way of first charge on residential project
12 quarterly installments ending in financial year 2024-25,

by way of pledge of shares owned by a reiated party, other Pafty and corporate’ guarantee of a refated pary and by

(it Rs 477 lakhs {31 March 2024 Rs 150 lakhs) (overdraft facility) availed by the company which is secured by fixed deposits lien in favour of bank.

{v} Loan from a financiat institution of Rs 8348 lakhs (31 March
Interest and fs repayable in 24 monthly installments with repaym

There zre no creation 7 modification of chal
Rules made thereunder,

2024-
anis 1o

Rs Nil) is secured by way of first charge on residential project at Hyderabad. The loan carries 11.7%
be started from March 2028 and ending i financial year 2029-30,

X N

rges or salisfaction thereof. which are pending to be registerad with ROC beyond the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and

Allihe Loarss are used fufly for the purpose for which they were obtained

Note - 18B
Lease liabilities {% in lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Deferred Lease liability 13 11
Total 13 11
Note - 19
Trade payables (¥ inlakhs)
Particufars 3% March 2025 31 March 2024
(A} Total outstanding dues of micro enlerprises andg smal
enterprises 124 20
{8) Total outstanding dues of cregitors other than micro
enlesprises and.small enterprises 2.049 1,929
Tatal 2,173 1,849
As at 11 March 2025 Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment( C)
Particulars Not Due (B} | Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 years >3 years Total
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 73 49 1 R 0 123
enterprises
Total oulstanding dues of crediters other tiian misre 520 1,182 315 2 30 2,049
entérprises and small enterprises
Tatal 583 1,231 315 2 30 2,172
As at 31 March 2024 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment{ C)
Particulars Not Due (B} Less than 1:year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 years Total
Total autstanding dues of micro eaterprises and small
: - 20 - 0 - 20
enterprises
Total outstahding dues of Greditors oiher ihan micro 16 ' gig
enterprises and small enterprises 118 1.793 2 - :
Total 118 1,813 2 0 16 1,949

0 {z2ro} indicates -amaunis less than a lakh

.




Abacus Real Estate Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note - 20
Current financial liabilities - Others

{ZIn lakhs}

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Creditors-for
- Capital goods

- 0
- Expenses 47 116
Deposits 17 17
Employee related fiabilities 40 48
Total 105 182
Note - 21
Other current liabilities {¥in lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Advance from cusiomer's 1,331 808
Slatutory dues 171 209
Othner payables 140 129
Total 1,642 1,146
Note - 22
Current liabilities :Provisions e (¥ in lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Emplovee benafits B 6
Total & -]




Abacus Real Estate Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial staterments

Note - 23
Revenue from operations T in lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Saie of residential units §,298 6,898
Total 8,298 6,898
Note - 24
Other income {2 in lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Liability no fonger required written back, 64 12
Flat Cancellatior Charges 52 (4}
Sale of Material 1 3
Miscellaneous income o] 3
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets 0
Interest income others* 26 34
Total 143 48
“Includes Interest on Income Tax Refund & Interest received on delayed payments
0 (zero) indicates amounts fess than a iakh.
Note - 25
Interest income (Zin lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
interest on financial assets measured at amortized cost
- Loan 1,073 1,936
- Deposits 40 34
Total 1,113 1,970
Note - 26
Cost of operations {Tin lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening stock 15,123 16,783
Add : Expenses incurred during the year
Project execution expenses 6,389 4,120
Consuitancy charges 195 269
Other project expenses 53 109
Overheads 376 388
Finance costs {Refer note 28) 2,709 2,400
24,845 24,070
Less: Closing stock (Refer note 8} 15,868 15,123
Total 8,978 8,946




Abacus Real Estate Private Limited
Notes farming part.of the finaricial statements

Note - 27

Employee benefits expense f in lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Salaries, aliowances and bonus 401 440
Contribution to provident and other funds 25 26
Total 427 466
Note - 28

Finance costs (Zin lakhs)

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Interest expenses

- Borrowings 3,747 4,392
- Others 18 )
Bark and other financial charges 100 149
Total 3,835 4,530
Less - Transfoerred o work-in-progress (Refer note 26) 2,709 2,400
1,126 2,130

Note - 29

Depreciation and amortisation axpense {¥in lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Depreciation an property, plant and gquipment 28 o
Depreciation on Right of use Assets 10 10
Totai 38 32
Note - 30

Other expenses {Fin lakhs)
Particuiars 31 March 2025 31 Match 2024
Rates and taxes 2 1
Legal and professional charges 7 7
Sales Office Expenses 59 51
Brokerage and saies incentive expense 17 39
Advertisement and markefing expenses 104 70
Auditors’ remuneration

- Audit fees 4 4
« Tax audit - 1
- Other services 0 -

- Reimbursement of expenses [t} -
Miscellaneous expenses 3 3
Total 196 186




Abagus Real Estate Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statemants

Note - 31
Earnings per share {EPS) itin lakhs}
Particulars 21 March 2025 31 March 2024
Face-vaie of equily shares [ Rs j i0 10
Weighled average number of equily shares 7.490 006 7:90.000
Profit / (loss} afler tax {Rs In fakhs) {848} (2211)
Basic and diluted earmings per share { Rs} {108} {280}
Note -32
Ingome tax
{2) Incoma tax related to items recognised directly in the statement of profit and loss duriitg the year

(% in lakhs)

Particulars

Far the year ended

31 March 2025

21 March 2024

Current incoma tax:
Currerit intome tax charge

Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous year ] (22)
Deferred tax:
Reiating ta origination and reversal of temperaty diferences {351) {611}
{statement of profit and loss {351) (633)
0 (zero) indicates amounts less than a fakh
{b} Deferred tax related to items recognized in other camprehensive income (OCl) during the year
) 1T 40 sakns)

Parlculars

For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Deferred tax asset un remeasurement gains or losses

ot defined benefit plan . {63}
Deferréd tax charged to OCt - (]
{t) Recanciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’'s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024:

{¥ in lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Accounting profit Before tax

At statutory income ax rate pf 25 17% (31 March 2024: 25 17%)
Adjustments in respect af current income lax n respect of previous years
Other deductibie temporary differences

Non-deducible expenses for tax purpose

Change in Income: tax rate

Change in recopnised deductibie temporary diferences

Income tax expense /credit} as per the statenent of profit and Joss

1212} (2.844)
(305} {716)
(e @2

14 12

10 15

{69 78
(350) (633}

o) Deferred tax relates to the following:

{¥ in lakhs)

Balance-Sheet

Recognized in the statement of
profit and loss

Recognized in OC|

Particulars 31March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Deductible temporary diffarences

Fiscaj allowance on propery, plant and equpmarnt L] 66 17 az

Empidyee benelits / expenses aliowable on payment basis 25 20 {5) 2t {0} 103
Unabsorbed fiseal alowances 984 641 {353} {6413

Impact of transitional provisions on adoption of ind AB -11% "Revenue {10} (18} (10

from customers® ) -

Net deferred tax asscisi{liabilifies) 1,059 707

Deferred tax charge/fcredit) (351) (511} {0) 10}

4




Abacus Real Estate Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note - 33
Segment information

Disclosure under Indian Accounting Standard 108 — *Operating Segments' is not given as. in the opinion of the management, the entire business activity falls

under one segment, viz., Real Estate development. The Company cenducts its business in cniy o

Note - 34
Related party disclostres

Holding company
Kalpataru Limited

Wholly owned subsidiaries
Ardour Properties Private Limited

Fellow subsidiaries

Abhiruchi Orchards Private Limiteg
Agile Real Estate Dev Private Limited
Agile Real Estate Private Limited
Alder Residency Private Limited
Amber Enviro Farms Private Limited
Arnber Qrchards Private Limited
Ambrosia Envira Farms Private Limited
Ambrosia Real Estate Private Limited
Anant Orchards Private Limitad
Ananta Landmarks Private Limited

Kalpataru Residency Private Limited {formerly known as Munot Infrastructure Devel

Enterprises controlled by the holding company

Kalpataru Plus Sharyans

Key management personnel
Jayant C, Oswal

Other related parties with whom transactions have take

K. €. Holding Private Limited
Kalpataru Constructions Private Limited

“(w.e f 315t May 2023)
"(w.e.f. 20th March 2024)

@Ceased o be subsidiary from 12th March 2024

Transactions with related parties

Kalpataru Constructions {Poona) Private Limited

Ardour Developers Private Limited
Arena Orchards Private Limited

Arimas Real Estate Private Limited
Aspen Housing Private Limited*

Astrum Qrchards Private Limited

Axiom Orchards Private Limited

Azure Treée Enviro Farms Private Limited
Azure Tree Lands Private Eimited

Azure Tree Orchards Private Limited
Kalpataru Land {Surat) Private Limited

Kalpataru Constructions (Pune)

Narendra 5. Lodha

Property Solutions Private Limited
Kalpataru Projects International Lid

n place during the year or balances outstandin

Kalpataru Gardens Private Limited

ne Geographical Segment, viz., India.

Kalpataru Hills Residency Private Limited
Kaipataru Homes Private Limited
Kalpataru Land Private Limited

Kaipatarut Properties {Thane) Private Limited

Kalpataru Properties Private. Limited
Kalpataru Property Ventures LLP@

Kalpataru Retail Ventures Private Limited
Kalpataru: Townships Private Limited”

opments Private Limited)**

Hemant Dave

g at the year end
Argos Atkaya Power Solutions LLLP

Heads/! Entity Relation 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Reimbursement of expenses paid 1 1
Kalpataru Limited Holding company 1 1
Business Support Services Expenses 11 5
Kalpataru Limited Holding company " 5
Sale of materials and services , TOR - 4
Kalpatary Retai} Ventures Private Limited Felfow subsidiary - 2
Kalpatasu Project International Limited Other related parly - 2
Purchase of materials and services , TDR 4,382 3179
Property Solutions Private Limited Other related party 45 36
Kalpataru Projects International Limited Other related party 4,332 3.142
Kalpataru Limited Halding company 1 1
Sale of property, plant and equipment 2 .
Kalpataru Limited Holding company 2 -
Interest expense 877 872
Kalpataru Limited Holding company 877 872
Interest: Income 1,073 1,935
Agile Real Estate Private Limited Feliow subsidiary 253 62
Kalpataru Properties Private Limited Fellow subsidiary 820 1.873
Loans / Advance given 2,908

Agile Real Estate Private Limited Fellow subsidiary 2,738

Kalpataru Properties Private Limited Fellow subsidiary 170

Y
=
N
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e
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Note - 34

Loan given repaid 14,241 9,128
Agile Real Estate Private Limited Fellow subsidiary 3.218 N
Kalpataru Properties Private Limited Feilow subsidiary 11,023 9128
Deposits given refuridad 28 -
Kaipataru Limited Halding company 26 .
Loan taken 1,375 2,240
Kalpataru Limited Holding company 1,375 2,240
Loan taken repaid 10,799 3,608
Kalpataru Limited Holding company 106,799 3,808
Closing balances as at 31 March 2035

Heads/ Entity Reiation 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Loans taken 843 9,424
Kalpataru Limited Halding company 843 8,424
Loans Given 1,983 13,089
Agile Real Estate Private Limited Fellow subsidiary 1,983 2,236
Kalpataru Properties Private Limited Fellow subsidiary - 10,853
Deposits Given . 26
Kaipataru Limited Molding company - 26
Trade and other receivables 25 25
Argos Arkaya Power Solutions LLLP Other related party 25 25
Trade and other payables 1,767 1,730
Kalpataru Limited Holding company - 0
Property Solutions Private Limited Other related party 57 15
Kaipataru Projects international Limited Other related party 1,710 1,715
Guaranteesl_securltles issued on Company's 17,000 17,000
behalf by

Kalpataru Constructions Private Limited ~ Other related party 17,000 17.000
Investment in Shares 18 18
Ardour Properties Private Limited Wholly owned subsidiaries g 9
Kaipataru Constretions (Paona) Private Limited Wholly owned subsidiaries 9 9

* Along with Aseem Properties LLP, K. C. Heiding Private Limited, Axiom Propetties Private Limited.

Notes

@} The details of related party relationships identified b

b) There have been no write offf write back in case of reiated parties.

All fransactions with relgted parties are made on arm’s le

dug to be settled for consideration in cash.

Note - 35

The company is the nominee sharehoider of various en
2013. Based on the request received from the benefici
favour of the lender of respeciive facilities availed by the beneficial ownér and other entities in which-the beénefig

company has created chargefs and filed the same with ROG/MCA.

s

tities in order to comply with minimum number of

al awner, the company has treated pledge of the securitie

y the.management of the company and refied upan by the auditor.

ngth basis in the ordinary course of business. The outstanding bafances at the year end are unsecured

shareholder requirement as per the Companies Act,
s held in its name as the registerad halder in
al owner is a sharehalder, Accordingly, the




Abacus Real Estate Private Limited
Notes formiing part of the financial statements

Note - 36
Contingent liabilities
a) Bank guarantee issued of Rs 13 lakhs { 31 March 2024 - Rs 11 lakhs).

ZIn lakhs
Beheficiary Name BG Amount
Mamber Secretary, Telangana State Pollution Control Board 2
The member secratary, Telangana State Pallution Control Board 2
The Commissioner GHMC 9

Lk A
b} Disputed dues of direct tax liability of Rs 2,857 Jakhs {31 March 24- Rs 3,088 lakhs). Refunds of AY 18-18 Rs. 263 Lakhs and AY 23-
24 of Rs,129 lakhs has been adjusted against the demand of AY 13-14 of Rs. 1,313 lakhs. Amount paid under protest Rs, 232 lakhs {31

March 2024: protest Rs. 232 lakhs).

¢} Disputed dues of indirect tax liability of Rs 330 lakhs {31 March 24- Rs. Nil). Amount paid under protest Rs 21 lakhs (31 Maréh 24- Rs,

Nil)

d} The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative cantracts on which there are foreseeable losses which are

not provided.

Note - 37
Collateral! Security pledged

The carrying amount of assets pledged! mortgaged as securities for barrowings of the Company are as under

¥ In lakhs

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Work-in-progress (Refer note 8} 15,603 15.075
Trade receivables (Refer note 10) 6,458 7.501

Note - 38
Disclosures pursuant to adeption of Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits

The employees' gratuity fund scheme {(unfunded} is a defined benefit plan. The present vallie of obligation is determined based on
actuarial valuation using the projecled unit cradit method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise o additional unit of
employee benefit entitfement and measures each unit separately to build up the finat cbligation, The obiigation for leave encashment

(unfunded) is also recognised in the same marnner as gratuity.

(i} Gratuity expenses recognised during the year in the statement of profit and loss

Current service cost
Interest cost

{ii) Expenses recognised during the year in other comprehensive income {(OCH)
Actuarial {gain)losses on obligation far the year
Net (incomejlexpenses for the year recognised in QCI

{iif) Net liability recognised in the balance shest
Fair value of plan assets

Present value of obligation
Liability recognised in batance sheet

¥ In lakhs

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

10 11

3 4
13 15
(8)] (@
(0) {0)

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

{iv) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligation (Gratuity unfunded)

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year
Liability transferred In/Acquisitions

Liability transferred Qut

Current service cost

Interest cast

Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation

Benefits paid

Defined. benefit obligation at the end of the year

v

67 51
67 61
ZIn lakhs
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
63 53
8 -
(16} -
10 11
3 4
{0) (@
o e, (5)
68~ BHU TS b 63

)ﬁ;?y T




Abacus Real Estate Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

{v} Actuarial assumptions

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Morality table - Indian Assured Lives 2012-14 2012-14
{Urban} {Urban)

Discount rate (per annum) 8.96% 7.23%
Rate of escatation in salary (per ARNLIT) 5.00% 5.00%
Attrition rate 5.00% 5.00%

{vi) A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption and its impact on projected benefit chligation are as folfows :

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Projected benefit obligation on current investment 67 61
Effect of + 1% change in rate of discaurting {5) {4}
Effect of - 1% change in rate of discounting 5 5
Effect of + 1% change in rate of salary increase 5 5
Effect of - 1% change in rate of salary increase {5) (4)
Effect of + 1% change in rate of emptoyee turnover 0 0
Effect of + 1% change in rate of employee turnover [(0)] {0)

{vii) Maturity analysis of projected benefit obligation
Prajected benefits payable in future years from the date
af reporting

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

1st following year 5 5
2nd following year 4 3
3rd following year 4 4
4th faliowing year 10 4
5ih following year 4 10
Sum of years 6 to 10 32 28
Sum of years 11 and above 65 61

(vill) Gratuity expense of Rs. 13 lakhs {March 24 Rs. 14 lakhs } refated to project employees has been transferred to work-in-progress.

(ix} Leave encashment expense of Rs, 1 lakh (March 24 Rs. 4 lakhs ) related to project employees has been transferred to work-in-
progress

(x) The estimate of future salary increase in the aciuarial valuation is considered after taking into account the rale of inflation, seniarity,
premotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment markef,

(xi) Contribution to provident and other funds is recognised as an expense in note 27 of the financial statements,

‘s v




Abacus Real Estate Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financlat staternents

Note - 39
Fair value measurement

a) Financial [nstruments by category

¥ In lakhs
31 March 2625 31 March 2024
Particulars FVTRL Amortised. EVTPL Amortised
: cost cost

Financial assets ; {Other than investment in
subsidiades)
Trade receivables 6,458 - 750
Current financial assels - Loans 1.883 - 13,089
Cashi and cash eguvalents 238 - 475
Qlher Bank balances 153 - m
Margin mbney deposits 946 - 803
Other financial assets {cureent) 136 - 230
Totak 9,915 - 21,990
Financial fiabilities :
Loans 8.446 - 9,212
Overdratt faciilty from bank 477 - 27
Loan from -
- Related party 843 - .42,
- Other parties - - -
Trade payahles 2471 - 1.94g
Lease lizbilittes 16 N 27
Other financial labikites (gurrent) 105 - 182
Total 12,058 - ‘21,065

b} Falr value hierarchy

The fair value of the financial assels and liabifities are includad af the amount atwhich tha instrument can be exchanged in the current transaction between wiling parties. other than in a forced or liquidation

saie.

The following tables provides the fair value measurement merarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities:

Note - 40t

Disclosura of various ratios - ¥ In lakhs

Ratios as at 3% March 2025 31 March 2024 Changes (%) Reasons for change

Ratlos

Current Ratia 1 2 “a| Change is due 16 Decrease in loans (o Intar Companes and
borrowing c ied under current habilitias

Debt-Equity Ratio A 2583 Change is dun to increase in 1oss in current year

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 8 {0 117%|Increase is due to increase in EBITOA wit pravious year

Return on Eguity Ralic NA {2) Total Equity has béen eroged during the yaar

fnventory Turnovar Ratia 1 1 I¥hlincreases irtratio indicales GP % incraase as compared to pravious
year

Tratle Receivable Turnover Ratip 1 k 20%Increased is due 10 decrease in average receivable and Increasa in
Sale as compared to previous year.

Trade Payable Tumover fatio 3 3 18] Reduction in ralio s due 0 increases m purchases and average
pajyable as compared 1o previous year

Net Capital Turnover Ratio {3) 0 116%|Changes is due increase in sales as compare [o previous yesr

Net Profit.Ratio 0) {0} Sa¥iincrease in ralic indicalds higher sales and profit as compared ta
previous yoar

Retum on Capitel Ermployed 8 {0} Increase is dud to decrease in Lass wit Previoys year.

All abave ratio are i lerms of times unless otherwise mentoned

As the Company recognises ils revenus overtime, the numbers of Revenue & ifs retatéd information may not strictly be comparable over the periods. hence required ratios are alse not strictly comparable.

s




Abacus Real Estata Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financiaj statemants

Note - 41
Financial Risk management objectives-and policles

The Comparny's principa financal babilities comprse ioans and borrowings and redeemable prefarence shares and trade and cther payables. The main purposa of these financial fiabilities is to finance the
Cornpany's operaticns. The Company's principat finangial assets include other recgivables and cash and cash Bguivalents that derive direcily from its dperations.

The Company is exposed through its operations 1o the following financial risks

- Credit risik

- Fair value or cash flow infarest raie sisk

= Othet market price risk, ang

~ Liquidity nisk

The Company s exposed io risks that arise fram 4s use of financiat instruments  This note descrbes the Company's objectives, palicies and procéssas for managing thise risks and the methods wsed to
raeasure them. Further quantitative information in respect of these risks i3 presenlad tAraughout these financial staternents

Thére have been no sibslentive changes in the company's exposura 16 financial instrument risks, its vbjeclves. policies Bnd processes for managing thosa risks or tha methods used 10 measue them from
previous periods unless otherwise stated in this nate.

Market risk
Mdrke! risk arises from the Company's use of interest bearing financial instruments, It 1s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial mstrument wil fluctuate becausa of changes in intengst
rates (interast rate risk) or other market factors {other price nsk}

Interest-rate nsk

Interest rata risk is the nsk that the fair vaiue or futuwre cash flows of a financial instrumery will Auztuate becapse of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure te the nsk of changes in market
nlerest rates reiates primanly to the Company's debt obigations with floating interest rates The management is responsible for tha monitaring of the Company’s interast rate rosition Different variables are
considersd by the managament in structuring the Carmpany's barrowings o achieve a reasonabyla, competiiva, cost of funding

Parficulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Impact of Increase of 50 basis points 126 g9

'mpact of Dacrease of 50 basis points {126} i94G)
Cradit risk

Credit nisk is the nsk that coumerparty will nol meat its obhgations under a inanoat instrument or sustomar contract, feathng to a finandial loss, The Comparly is exposed to credit risk from it operating
activities and from s financing aclivities, including depasils with banks.,

Finangial instruments and cash deposits
With respect to credit risk ansing from the ofher financiat assets of the company, which comprise bank balances and cash, lozdns to related parties, other receivables and deposds. the Company's exposure
to eredit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equat io the canying amount of thesé assets.

Credit nsk from batances wilh banks is managed by Company's treasury i accordance with the Company's policy. The company limits its #xposure 1o credit risk by oniy placing balances with local banks
Given the profile of 5 bankers, management does not expect any counterparty to fad in meeting it obligations

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Campany monitors 5 fisk 1o a shortage of funds using 2 fecuring liquidity planning fool. This
loot considers the maturity of bath its finaneial invesiments and financial assets {e.g Other financial assets) ang projected cash fiows from operations

The cash flows, linding requirements and liquidity of company 15 monitared under the controt of Treasury team. The ohiective is to optimize the efficiency and effectiveness of the management of tha
company's capital resources  The Company's cbjechive i to maintain a balance belween continuity of funding and horrawings The Company manages kquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves.
banking facilities antd borrowing facilities, by continuously monitering forecasted and actual cash flows and maiching the malurity profiles of financial assets and lighihties

The Company currently has sufficient cash on demand ta meet expecled operational expanses, including the senvicing of financial obligations
The taBle below summarises the maturily profile of the Company's financial liabiitias based on conltractual undiscounted payrients,

Zin fakhs
Particulars LE::;::" ;;:r: 3;:: Mare than 5 years Total
As at 31 March 2025
Borrowings 25275 - - - 25275
Trade and other payables 2172 . - - 2172,
Cther financial liabilities 195 - - - 105
27,552 - . - 27,552
As at 31 March 2024
Borrowings 24,354 11416 - - 35770
Trade and other payabies 1.8949 B . - 1943
Other financial igbilities 182 - - - 1B2
25,485 ‘ 11,416 : - 37,901

Note -42

Capital Management

For the purpose of Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital and otfier equity reserves. The prmary objective of the Company's Capita Management is to maximize- sharehoider value,
The company managss its capital structure-and makes adjustments in the light of thanges in ezonoemic environment and the fequirements of the financial covenants,

The company monitors capital using gearing ratio. which 1s Net debt divided by totat capital

¥ In fakhs
As at Asat

Particulars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Gross debt {inclusiva of long term and shord ferm borrewingy 25275 19736
Less Cash and bank balances {239) {476
Net debt 25,036 19,260
Total equity (783 7B
Total capita 24,253 19,339
Gearing ratio 1 1

No changes were made in the objectives, piicies or processes far managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

i




Aliacus Reat Estate Private Limited

Notes forming part of the finantiai statements

Note-~ 43

Details of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securitles provided covered uis 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013

4. The Company is engaged in the business of Real Estale Development which i5 classified under Infrastruclural facifities as specifieg under Schedute VI of the Companies Act. 2013 (the "Act} &and hence
the provisions of Section 186 of the Act ralated toloansiguarantees given or securities provided are not applicable ta the Company

b There are no investments made atfier than those disciosed in note 5A

Note - 44
Disclosure as required under Micro Smal! and Medium Enterprises Davelopment Act, 2006

¥ In fakhs
Patticulars 31 March 2025 31March 2024}

The principal amount & interest due therean remaining unpaid to Supplier " 124 a8
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in lerms of sectan 16, along with the amounts of payment made 1o the Supplier beyong the - -

apponted day tufing each accounting year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have baen paid buf beyond the appointed - .
date during the year) but withgut adding the intérest specified under MSMED act, 2006
The amourit of inferest accrued ang remaining unpatd at the end of each atcounting year 0 1
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in succeeding years, unti such date when the interest dues as above . -

are actually paid to smalt enterprisas. for the purpese of disalfewance 2s a deductitite expenditure undar section 23

Note- 45
Ta the best of informatiorn of management of the Cornpany. the disclosure requirements to be given pursuant to Gazatte notfication for Amandments in Schedule Bl to Companigs Act, 2013 dated 24 March
2021 effective from 0T April 2021 pertaining o following malters are either disciosed or not applicable to the company:

1. {hsciosure on Revaluation of Property. plant and equipment and intangibie assets from Registered Valuers is not applicable tn company

2 Noproceeding nas been inftiatad ar pending aganst the Company for holding any benam property under the Benami Transactions {Probibition) Act 1086 {us of 1988} an rules made thereundar

3. The Company has not been declared a wilful defauter by any bank or finantial instiulion o other fender.

4. Relationship with Struck off Companies*

Dunng the year, tha Company has nat entered into ary transaction with companties stuck off under Section 248 of the Cempanies Azt, 2013 or Section 566 of Companies Act, 1956 exeapt as hersunder.-

¥ in lakhs
Whetherit is related  |Balance
party? transaction

Amount witten off Mo g

Naine of struck off Company Nature of Fransaction [Action taken, if any

Endisss Robotics Pyt Ltd

Painting work

5 As per clause (87) of section 2 and section 185 {1 of the Companias Act 2013 and Rules made thereunder, the company is in complaince with the nurber of fayers as permulted under the saig
provisions

6. The Company has not trades or invested i Cryplo currency or virtual curency during the financiat year
7 There are no transactions recorded in books of account reflecting surrender disciosure of ncome inthe assessment under income Tax Agl, 198+
8. The company has not carnied out any scheme whizh s not approved by regulatory authosities during the year.

Note- 46

Audit Trail

The accounting software used by the Company, lo maintain 1ts Books of accaunt have & faature of recording audit lrail {edit Iog} facility and the same has teen operaied throughout the year for ail
rapsactions recorded in the software. The Company has an eslablished provess of regularly identifying shoricomings, if any, and updating technologicat advancaments and features inciuding auds trail. The
shortcamings identiftad during the course of audit are being raviewed and corrective action is being taken wharever required

Mote .47

Intermediary shall, whether | directly or indireclly lend or invest in ather persons of entities identified in any manner whatscevar by or on behatt of the company ("Ulimate Seneficianes” or provided any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Lltimale Benefciaries

b} Ta the best of our knowleéda & belief, ne funds {which are malerial gither indhvidually-or In: the aggregate) have been raceived by the Company from any person{s; or enlily(ies}. including foregn ently
{"funding parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded In writing or olherwise, that.the Company shall, whether, directy or indireétly, lend or Invest in other persons or enfities identified i any manner
whalsoever by or on behaif of the funding parties (“Utirmate Beneficianas”) of prowde any guarantee. securily or the itke on behat of the Uitimate Beneliciarios

Note - 48
No dividend is declared & paid during the current financial year

Note -49
In view of accounting lusses made by the company due tg reat estate revenue recognition accaunting methed and resuitant cormplete erpsion of net worth of the tompany, the holding company kas given
thair assurance to arange the required financial SUpport 1o mairitain the company as going concem

Note - 50
Events after reporting date
There have been no events after tha reporting date that require disclosute in these financral statements

Note - 51
Pravieus year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, wherever necessary, o comespond with current year ciasefication,

As per ouf report of even date
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